# EMPLOYEE PERCEPTIONS OF THE BENEFITS OF OUTSOURCING HUMAN RESOURCE FUNCTIONS AT MOI TEACHING AND REFERRAL HOSPITAL

KITAGWA MUSIMBI RENEE

A RESEARCH PROJECT PRESENTED IN PARTIAL FULFILMENT OF
THE REQUIREMENT FOR THE AWARD OF THE DEGREE OF MASTER
OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION (MBA),SCHOOL OF BUSINESS,
UNIVERSITY OF NAIROBI

# **DECLARATION**

This Research Project is my original work and has never been presented to the University of
Nairobi or any other institution for an academic award
Signed
Signed Date
Kitagwa Musimbi Renee
Registration Number: D61/70442/09
This project has been presented for examination with my approval as the university supervisor.
SignedDate
Florence Muindi.
Proteine Mulliul.

School of Business

University of Nairobi

#### **ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS**

I would like to thank the Almighty God for granting me the grace to study this course. My sincere gratitude is to all who contributed immensely in one way or another to the preparation of this research project. My special thanks go to my supervisor, Florence Muindi for her consistent guidance, constructive feedback and helpful advice throughout this project. To my family and friends who gave me both emotional and intellectual support I offer my sincere gratitude. I am grateful to my parents Mary Anne and William Kitagwa for continuously instilling the value of education in me. I am greatly indebted to my lovely husband N.M.Dumbeyia for moral and financial support and consistent encouragement to complete this project. My children Enilsah and Raynor who have been the motivation and energy behind this project, I salute you. Most sincere thanks also go to Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital employees who graciously gave their time to fill the research instrument. To my classmates and friends whose generous and indomitable spirit made this project possible.

God bless you all.

# **DEDICATION**

To mum and dad: thank you for your instilled importance of education, hard work for achievement in me.

To my husband Nelson, thank you for your love, continued support and advice.

To my children Enilsah and Raynor: thank you for your understanding and patience when I was not available for you when you needed me most.

#### **ABSTRACT**

This study sought to determine the relationship between employees perception of the benefits of outsourcing human resource services at the Moi and teaching referral hospital. The population of interest consisted of all the employees of Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. This was a descriptive survey. Primary data was used in this study. Data was collected from 80 of the employees' of Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. The collected data was analyzed and interpreted in line with the objective of the study. The response rate was 100% of the target population. The study established that there exists positive attitude towards the benefits of outsourcing. For instance, employees feel that outsourcing of Human Resource functions reduces the workload of the existing staff, hence allowing the organization to focus on strategic decision making. It is therefore important that Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital developes policies that will allow them to consider their employees perceptions before outsourcing human resource functions. This study will be important to the management of Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital since it will enable them appreciates their employees' perceptions on the Benefits of Outsourcing Human Resource Functions. Replicating this study in different settings would be worthwhile hence further research should be done in other sectors of the Kenyan economy, both public and private since it is apparent that outsourcing generally benefits organizations and therefore it is here to stay.

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

Declaration	i
Acknowledgment	ii
Dedication	iii
Abstract	iv
List of Tables.	vii
Abbreviations	viii
CHAPTER ONE: INTRODUCTION	1
1.1 Background of the study	1
1.1.1 Employee Perceptions	1
1.1.2 Outsourcing of Human Resource Services	3
1.1.3 Benefits of Outsourcing Human Resource Services	4
1.1.4 The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital	5
1.2 Research Problem	6
1.3 Research Objective	8
1.4 Value of the study	8
CHAPTER TWO: LITERATURE REVIEW	9
2.1 Human Resource Outsourcing	9
2.2 Benefits of Outsourcing.	10
2.2.1 Cost Effectiveness.	11
2.2.2 Focus on Core Competencies	11
2.2.3 Strategic Human Resource.	13
2.2.4 Service Delivery	14
2.2.5 Efficiency	15
2.3 Employee Perceptions and Human Resource Outsourcing	15
CHAPTER THREE: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	18
3.1 Introduction.	18

3.2 Research Design.	18
3.3 Target population	18
3.4 Sample Size and Selection Procedure	18
3.5 Data Collection	19
3.6 Data Analysis	19
CHAPTER FOUR: DATE ANALYSIS, RESULTS AND DISCUSSION	20
4.1 Introduction	20
4.2 Demographic Characteristics	20
4.2.1 Gender of Respondents	20
4.2.2 Age of Respondents	21
4.2.3 Job level	22
4.3 Employee Perception on the Benefits of Outsourcing	22
4.3.1 Employee Perception to the Cost Effective	23
4.3.2 Employee Perception on Focus on Core Competencies	24
4.3.3 Employee Perception of Strategic Human Resource	25
4.3.4 Employee Perception of Service Delivery	27
4.3.5 Employee Perception of Efficiency	28
4.4 Discussions	29
CHAPTER FIVE: SUMMERY OF FINDINGS CONCLUSIONS AND	
RECOMMENDATIONS	32
5.1 Introduction	32
5.2 Summery of the Findings	32
5.3 Conclusion	33
5.4 Recommendations	34
5.5 Suggestions for further Research	35
5.6 Limitations of the Study	36
Reference	37
Appendix 1.letter of Introduction	43
Appendix 2. Questionnaire	44

# **List of Tables**

<b>3.1</b> : Sam	pple Frame	
<b>4.1</b> : Geno	der of respondents	
<b>4.2</b> : Age	Bracket	
<b>4.3:</b> Perc	centage of Employee by the Job Level	
	ans and Standard Deviations of Employee Perceptions on Cost Effectiveness a benefit of Outsourcing	
<b>4.5</b> : Mea	ans and Standard Deviations of Employee Perceptions on Core Competencies .24	
<b>4.6:</b> Mean	ns and Standard Deviations of Employee Perceptions of Strategic nan Resource	
<b>4.7</b> Mean	ns and Standard Deviations of Employee Perceptions on Service Delivery27	
<b>4.8</b> Mean	ns and Standard Deviations of Employee Perceptions on efficiency38	

## **ABBREVIATIONS**

AMPATH-Academic Model for the Prevention and treatment of HIV/Aids

MTRH-Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital

HRIS-Human Resource Information System

IT-Information Technology



#### **CHAPTER ONE**

#### **INTRODUCTION**

# 1.1 Background of the Study

Human Resource (Human resource Management) is living in a turbulent environment brought about by technological advancement, social factors, economic ups and downs and political pressures. Human Resource is a very important part of the Organization due to; increasing cost of labor to increase productivity, need for compensation plans that motivate, the need for ensuring good employee relations and the ever changing laws regarding employee relations (Gubbins et al 2006; Wirtz et al 2008). Due to this, organizations around the world are increasingly using outsourcing as a strategic Human Resource Management tool which can be leveraged to allow them to focus on their core competencies. Mondy (2000) argues that in today's competitive environment the Human resource function can no longer afford to be the personnel department of old hiring and firing. The increasing recognition of the human resource as a legitimate business unit has made it highly strategic in nature and more critical to achieving corporate objectives. This has brought the need to free human resource professionals to concentrate on strategic issues and to leave out routine work which is not core, so as to make personnel better able to focus attention on strategic importance. This has led to adopting outsourcing as a means to enhanced efficiency and effectiveness in performance.

#### 1.1.1 Employee Perceptions

Perception can be defined as 'a process by which individuals organize and interpret their sensory impressions in order to give meaning to their environment' Perception is not necessarily based on reality, but is merely a perspective from a particular individual's view of a situation. In dealing with the concept of organizational behavior, perception becomes important because 'people's behavior is based on their perception of what reality is, not on reality itself (Robbins et al 2004 p 132).

Perception is the process of perceiving and the way of conceiving something. Perception is the process of acquiring, interpreting, selecting and organizing sensory information. Perception is the way; we react to any particular situation. The world as it is perceived as the world that is behaviorally important. An understanding and appreciation of this is no pre-requisite to effective employee perception in the workplace and therefore effective management and leadership (Icfai University Press, HRM Review, 2008). There is a known fact that without perception, nothing can be done in an organization and for doing any task we need a perception which is accepted by all the employees in an organization. It is the key for the manager to make her team work and get the better output for the organization (Kessler et al 1999). Perception helps each and every individual in the organization to carry the things in different wares as the organization needs different perceptions to make successful results.

Organizations and their employees face ongoing challenges in the form of new strategic initiatives designed to keep pace in an increasingly complex business environment. In order for these challenges to be successfully met, new behaviors are required on the part of employees (Sims 1994). Defining these new behaviors is initiated through the organization's human resource practices (Rousseau & Wade-Benzoni 1994). However, actual change in individual employees' behaviour is determined by interpreting their employers' human resource practices. Such interpretation affects employee behaviour by altering perceptions on how human resource outsourcing practices among others is of benefit to individual employees. When the idea of outsourcing is raised, the organization's first decision is to identify the importance of the internal activities and nominate those activities which should be outsourced. Employee involvement appears to be a significant factor in making this decision and can influence the level of trust and commitment employees have in the organization (Fiorito et al 2007; Simmonds & Gibson, 2008). Each option has its own benefits and managers should consider which option is suitable for their organization. The choice of outsourcing impacts on employees and these impacts need to be identified

#### 1.1.2 Outsourcing of Human Resource Services

Outsourcing is the situation when a company sub-contracts to another supplier work that it was previously performing in-house (Mabey 1999). Jarilo (1998) argues that vertical integration had been the dominant philosophy of large organizations; historically they believed that one should establish control over all activities contributing to the value chain of a given product, however the trend is beginning to break down in favor of variants of subcontracting and strategic networks which essentially constitute an alternative market based organization form. Torrington (2005) observes that managers are keen to focus all their energies on the core business activities, by which they mean those activities which are the source of competitive advantage and which determine the success or failure of the organization. There is the desire to minimize the amount of management time and effort which is spent carrying out marginal activities. Institute of personnel and development (1998) observes that the biggest single cause in the increase of outsourcing has been the concept of core organization which focuses its in-house expertise on its primary function and purchases any necessary support from a range of sources in its periphery. The policy has become to manufacture only the items –and internally source only those support services-that contribute directly to, or help to maintain, our competitive advantage.

Increasingly human resource services which would previously have been regarded as a business own responsibility to manage, are now routinely being purchased from external suppliers. Human resource function is well positioned to outsource some of its activities to management consultancies and other agencies or firm that act as services providers (Lohuman resource, 2007). Outsourcing can be done in areas like: training, recruitment, executive search, occupational health and safety services, employee welfare and counseling activities, pay roll administration and legal advisory services.

#### 1.1.3 Benefits of Outsourcing Human Resource Services

It's true that outsourcing can save money, but that's not the only (or even the most important) reason to do it. As many firms discovered during the outsourcing "mania" of the early 1990s, outsourcing too much can be an even bigger mistake than not outsourcing any work at all. The flat economy caused many companies into huge layoffs and subsequently outsourced functions that were better kept in-house. Wise outsourcing, however, can provide a number of long-term benefits for instance; human resource costs are reduced because the services are cheaper and the size of the function can be cut back (Hansen, 2009; Lawler & Mohrman, 2003). Concentration of human resource effort this enables the organization to dispense with the services of junior human resource staff and to retain small team of more senior people to deal with policy issues, sensitive or confidential matters and union negotiations. Quinn (1992) argues that companies should concentrate on those core competencies (usually intellectual or service activities) which can be best in the world. The other activities should be outsourced. Access to expertise knowledge is another benefit which enhances access to specialist services. Organizations are able to obtain know-how and experience that are unavailable in the organization

Human resource services outsourcing improves service delivery; this appears to encourage the measurement of value of human resource which comes about through the need for service level agreements and key performance indicators with a greater focus on customer satisfaction. Outsourcing has been introduced as a vehicle for effecting changes that would be hard to implement internally, it also enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off (Quinn 1992). It offers an improved method of capacity management of services and technology where the risk in providing the excess capacity is borne by the supplier. Enhance capacity innovation where Companies increasingly use external knowledge service providers to supplement limited in-house capacity for product innovation.

Co modification is the trend of standardizing business processes, IT Services and application services enabling businesses to intelligently buy at the right price. It allows a wide range of businesses access to services previously only available to large corporations. Senior human

resource people are more interested in the business of their company than the business of human resource, that is, they are more concerned with the well being as well as growth of the business in the long run (Mabey 1999) .They would like to become more strategic, and the only way they can have the time to do so is to get rid of the time that's committed to some of the administrative functions by outsourcing them. It also helps in controlling the hassle factors (Blackman et al 2006). There are loads of hassle factors like keeping track of all people ,managing technology budgets ,managing service level agreements etc, all these core competencies of business are really required ,but these factors can easily be taken care by outsourcing human resource company ,to give employers ease from managing such complex functionalities. Human resource services outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision. It is concerned with how resources (money, time, equipment, and personnel) are used to get the desired result, one is said to be efficient if the minimum cost is spent to obtain the desired goals (Jarilo 1998). Better use of resources. Outsourcing permits an organization to redirect its extra resources from non-core activities towards activities that have greater return in serving the customer (Thompson et al 2005). By outsourcing a non-core value creation activity to a supplier that has a distinctive competency in that activity, the company may also be able to better differentiate its final product.

## 1.1.4 The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital (MTRH)

The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital (MTRH) started as a cottage Hospital in 1917 and has since evolved into a fully-fledged second referral facility in the country with a 800-bed capacity. Teaching and referral facility was accorded by the legal notice No.78 of 12th June 1998 under the state corporations Act (CAP 446) and the first board of the management was gazetted on June 1999. The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital has grown tremendously over the last 90 years from a Native Cottage hospital to a National Referral Hospital . The hospital has since grown to incorporate the Academic Model for the Prevention and treatment of HIV/Aids (AMPATH), one of its kinds in Africa. The hospital provides a range of health services in three categories namely: Curative, Preventive and Rehabilitative (http://www.mtrh.or.ke).

The establishment of Moi University in 1984 and subsequently the establishment of the Faculty of Health Sciences at Moi University according to the "Mackay Report" (September 1981) was, " To meet the high level of manpower required for the delivery of health services to the people and particularly in the rural areas." It is important to note that emphasis was put on the promotive and preventive aspects of health; this was a landmark event that would later have a direct impact on the development of the hospital, leading to its elevation from a Provincial to a National Teaching and Referral Hospital (http://www.mtrh.or.ke). This led to the construction of a new outpatient complex, student hostels, Modern Mortuary, and Senior Staff Houses through a grant from the Chinese Government in 1990. The hospital also has a training centre that offers courses for Registered Nursing by way of e-learning as well as in-house training on Computer Applications.

## 1.2 Research Problem

People management plays a crucial role in delivering organizational performance. In today's modern knowledge economy this is truer than ever before. The decision to outsource human resource services is therefore not to be taken lightly. Cost reasons alone are not sufficient to drive the decision. Decision makers need to ask whether there is a need to change the way the human resource department operates and review existing provision (Klepper & Jones, 1998). Where gaps are identified, organizations need to consider whether these are best solved by minor tinkering or major transformation. It must also not be forgotten that a transition from in-house human resource provision to the use of an outsourced provider is a significant change for the organization, and must be managed accordingly. If significant time is not devoted to the process of change, with unequivocal top-level support, there is a danger that staff / line manager relationships and other aspects of people management policy may be neglected. Most human resource practitioners recognize employees are the key for an organization to gain a competitive advantage. Hence, it could be suggested that organizations should strongly focus on employees and be heavily committed to employee satisfaction (Dessler, 2008; Ivancevich, 2007; Reilly & Williams, 2006), by understanding and attempting to satisfy the needs of their employees (Dibble, 1999).

The rapid developments at the Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital and among its stakeholders have posed various challenges which have necessitated the development of the strategic plan for 2008-2012. The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital incorporates the Academic Model for providing access to healthcare. As healthcare provider MTRH needs to manage its workforce effectively, to ensure quality performance and avoid losing some of the most competent employees. It is in the organization's interest to ensure it maintains a motivated and effective workforce as a step towards combating the ever-increasing competition in the global environment, thus the need to understand the employee perceptions of the benefits of outsourcing of human resource services in the organization the services being outsourced at the MTRH are; pay role administration, human resource Management and risk management.

Several studies have been carried out locally on human resource outsourcing among them; Makhino (2006) studied the Benefits & Challenges of Outsourcing human resource Activities of Commercial Banks in Kenya. The study established that the banks that outsource some of their Human resource activities have benefited from the practice, the benefits have however not been fully exploited because the banks do not have clear policies to govern the practice and the range of activities outsourced by banks is still narrow. Komen (2005) studied the Extent of Outsourcing of Human Resource Management Functions by the Public Service in Kenya, the study revealed that most of the Ministries outsourced these function to a longer extent albeit from other government institutions. Nyarandi (2002) studied Implementation of Outsourcing in Private Hospitals, which revealed that the practice of outsourcing is not new in private hospital. The main reason for outsourcing was established as focus in core business, service improvement and reduction of service cost. Tarlochan (2001) studied the Outsourcing of Human resource Management Services among Manufacturing Firms in Nairobi. The findings of the study reflect that only 42.42% of manufacturing firms of all sizes in Nairobi outsource Human resource services.

The findings of these studies indicate a knowledge gap on whether there are some areas that outsourcing can be studied to determine how it affects employees and its benefits to both individual and organization performance. This laid a basis for this study since none of the local studies carried out researched on Employee Perceptions of the Benefits of Outsourcing of

Human Resource Services at the Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. This study therefore seeks to look at the in-depth analysis of the employee perceptions of the benefits of outsourcing human resource services. This therefore leads to the question: what perceptions do Employees have with regard to the benefits of outsourcing?

# 1.3 Research Objective

To establish the employees' perceptions of the benefits of outsourcing human resource services at the Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital-Eldoret.

# 1.4 Value of the Study

This study will be important to the management of MTRH as it will enable them appreciate and recognize their employees' perceptions on the benefits of outsourcing human resource services. The study results will also inform Management and staff of other organizations as it will provide insight on their employees' perceptions on the benefits of outsourcing human resource services. Scholars/researchers will also find it important as the study will increase to the body of knowledge in this area.

#### **CHAPTER TWO**

#### LITERATURE REVIEW

#### 2.1 Human Resource Outsourcing

Human Resource plays a crucial role in any company or organization. The latest buzzword in the human resource stream is that of Human resources Outsourcing. It is gaining both, popularity and worldwide acceptance. This is because it is one effective way, to save costs. More and more companies are realizing that Human resources Outsourcing is an essential tool to bring down costs and bring value addition to the business (Taylor, 2007). Organizations of all kinds are growing aware of the need for Human resources Outsourcing. The best skills will be available at lower costs thus shoring up profitability. If a business has to survive in this competitive world, it has to increase productivity and be competitive (Lohr, 2007).

Outsourcing is the situation when a company sub-contracts to another supplier work that it was previously performing in-house Mabey (1999). Jarilo (1998) argues that vertical integration had been the dominant philosophy of large organizations; historically they believed that one should establish control over all activities contributing to the value chain of a given product, however the trend is beginning to break down in favor of variants of subcontracting and strategic networks which essentially constitute an alternative market based organization form. Torrington (2005) observes that managers are keen to focus all their energies on the core business activities, by which they mean those activities which are the source of competitive advantage and which determine the success or failure of the organization.

While examining the issue of Human resources Outsourcing, the company should be very clear on the kind of service it expects. It would do the company good to set down the present job roles and expectations to create a benchmark. This would help in assessing the impact of outsourcing afterwards. Communication on the expectations should be very clear. Human resources can be partly outsourced for growing businesses. This will translate into immediate savings for the

business. These savings can be channelized into the business for growth (Kamath, 2007; Sullivan L., 2004). While there is a hue and cry going on about Human resource Outsourcing, it should be recognized that companies gain competitive advantage in the process. Companies gain by improvement in quality and productivity. However, it needs to be noted that outsourcing does not deliver all the time, especially on-going human resource functions that are better performed by the internal Human resources of a company.

# 2.2 Benefits of Human Resource Outsourcing

One solution that many businesses have started turning to, is human resource outsourcing. Basically, this involves contracting all of your human resource-related job duties out to a company that specializes in providing human resource support to other businesses. Like any sort of outsourcing, it has its ups and downs, but there are a number of benefits that outsourcing your human resources tasks brings. The first, obviously, is that you no longer have to do the paperwork yourself, nor do you need to hire human resource personnel. This saves you a lot of time and money. Outsourcing allows organizations to focus on their core business and can create a competitive advantage by reducing operational costs. Shelgren (2004) reports organizations can pay 99 percent of employee claims within two weeks and provide service responses as required within 48 hours, when compared with running human resource activities in-house. Outsourcing human resource activities also provides organizational flexibility in dealing with the challenges of a constantly changing environment (Makenna & Walker, 2008; Young S., 2007). In rapid growth periods, the back-office operations of a company will expand. This expansion may start to consume resources (human and financial) at the expense of the core activities that have made your company successful. Outsourcing those activities will allow refocusing on those business activities that are important without sacrificing quality or service in the back-office.

#### 2.2.1 Cost Effectiveness

Although asset costs are increasing due to the impact of the global financial crisis (Mouhammed, 2008), organizations cannot increase their production cost due to the high level of competition in today's markets. It is necessary for organizations therefore to search for strategies which lower asset costs (Greer et al 1999; Hansen, 2009; Potkány, 2008). Outsourcing is seen as a cost saving strategy (Stroh & Treehuboff 2003), with organizations outsourcing their non-core competencies whilst still maintaining customer service, and thereby gaining a competitive advantage (Thompson et al 2005). Global operations and the goal of organizational growth naturally puts pressure on organizations to invest in human capital (Hasan & Abdullah, 2008; Leeuwen & Foldvari, 2008; Potkány, 2008). Jeffay et al (1997) suggest that outsourcing human resource activities can maintain a better-quality human resource service at a cheaper price. The cost of outsourcing human resources activities can amount to less than the cost to recruit, interview, hire and train human resources staff members to perform the same functions. Limited budgets often leave no choice but to outsource human resources functions. However, companies that begin outsourcing human resource functions later add staff to ensure quality control of provider services. Calculating cost savings over time can justify continued human resources outsourcing as a standard practice.

#### 2.2.2 Focus on Core Competencies

Many organizations make a decision to outsource some organizational activities. This is because they want to focus on their core competencies, and see low value in developing in-house activities outside of this core (Cooper, 2007; Potkány, 2008). Specifically, outsourcing human resource activities can reduce the work load of existing human resource staff, thereby allowing the organization to primarily focus on strategic decision making and developing core competencies (Hansen, 2009). Cook (1999) supports the view that outsourcing human resource activities can allow managers to pay attention to their core business rather than spend valuable time on human resource activities that are becoming increasingly more complex and advanced. Datar (2003) proposes that some internal activities of the human resource function

are not core business and could be either permanently or temporarily outsourced. For example, recruitment is the most popular human resource process to be outsourced. Such a strategy also allows the organization to focus on and invest in core competencies.

Recruitment specialists have more advanced techniques, including multiple sourcing ("spiders") channels, web-sites, and recruitment software that can easily find thousands of applicants, thereby increasing the probability that the best person for the job will be found (Maidment, 2003). The increased complexity and turnover of information in the human resource area is also widely managed by external experts. Human Resource Information Systems (HRIS) and other human resource software play an important support (Stone, 2006). Stone confirms that HRS has become a significant managing people mechanism that helps organizations improve productivity and retain a competitive advantage. Moreover, he argues that HRIS can integrate vital human resource information and organization strategy. However, constant updates in technology often make HRIS useless and hence require large expenditure to maintain, upgrade and modify. Organizations may not have the specialized skills in-house to be able to handle these challenges.

Developing HRIS requires professional expertise which many organizations lack (Pritchard 1984). Greer et al (1999) therefore suggest that outsourcing HRIS to a provider is a cost-effective strategy. Therefore, there are a variety of factors that motivate the trend towards human resource outsourcing, including a focus on cost saving, and the need to concentrate on core competencies (Reilly, 2006). However, the focus on human resource as a value-adding function at the strategic level is seen as a significant driver for outsourcing human resource activities.

#### 2.2.3 Strategic Human Resource

Organizations increasingly acknowledge the strategic importance of the human resource function (Gubbins et al 2006; Wirtz et al 2008). As human resource management perspectives change from operational and administrative, to strategic, human resource becomes more aligned with organizational goals and strategy. This change has increased the focus of outsourcing the human resource function, and it is steadily building momentum in many (Merritt, 2007; Raman et al 2007). Hence, outsourcing the function is seen as a significant part of contemporary human resource strategy (Lohr, 2007). It has been suggested that by specifically isolating the human resource management function, organizations can gain an edge over competitors (Beardwell & Claydon, 2007). For instance, in a study by Gilley et al (2004) outsourcing the human resource function had an impact on organizational performance. Specifically, the research showed that outsourcing both training and payroll led to a higher propensity for organizational innovation. Moreover, outsourcing the training activity led to high stakeholder performance and an increased ability to add value to the stakeholder. Furthermore, outsourcing the training activity also led to improved supplier- customer relations, because employees were well trained by expert professionals. More importantly however, research supports that outsourcing human resource activities can encourage the human resource function to become more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and addressing developmental goals in terms of specific human resource knowledge – and more time on strategic planning (Kosnik et al 2006; Stopper, 2005). Currently, it seems the most common outsourcing human resource activities are recruitment, payroll, training and development, benefit administration and legal compliance, and the administration or transaction process of human resource. Research conducted by Elmuti (2003) shows top human resource activities that their respondents outsourced or decided to outsource were payroll, administration of retirement plans, and benefit administration.

human resource outsourcing is longer strictly about recruitment, However, no payroll, training and development, and legal compliance. Organizations increasingly report that they outsource many more human resource activities. This implies that, organizations and Human Resource Organization providers will become business partners. It seems that in the future, human resource providers will take full responsibility for their client's human resource function. In turn, to understand the nature of their client's business, Human Resource Organization providers need to consider the context of their client, including organizational culture and structure (Tanure & Duarte, 2007). Hence, it appears that outsourcing as a Human resource strategy is increasing in popularity. It appears organizations important therefore. that should consider the impact making outsourcing choices, especially given the potential for positive impact.

#### 2.2.4 Service Delivery

This appears to encourage the measurement of value of human resource which comes about through the need for service level agreements and key performance indicators with a greater focus on customer satisfaction. Outsourcing has been introduced as a vehicle for effecting changes that would be hard to implement internally, it also enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off (Quinn 1992). It offers an improved method of capacity management of services and technology where the risk in providing the excess capacity is borne by the supplier. Enhance capacity innovation where Companies increasingly use external knowledge service providers to supplement limited in-house capacity for product innovation. It also helps in controlling the hassle factors. There are loads of hassle factors like keeping track of all people ,managing technology budgets ,managing service level agreements etc, all these core competencies of business are really required ,but these factors can easily be taken care by outsourcing human resource company ,to give employers ease from managing such complex functionalities (Beardwell & Claydon, 2007). Human Resource services outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision. It is concerned with how resources (money, time, equipment, and

personnel) are used to get the desired result, one is said to be efficient if the minimum cost is spent to obtain the desired goals (Jarilo 1998).

#### 2.2.5 Efficiency

Hiring an outsource provider to handle your human resources functions can improve efficient handling of employment matters. Startup companies, in particular, benefit from the level of expertise afforded by outsource providers. The major advantage of human resources outsourcing includes efficient handling of compensation and benefits administration that requires extensive knowledge of laws and regulations pertaining to employment and taxation. Human Resource outsource providers can also handle recruiting functions, workplace investigations and occupational safety reporting in a more efficient manner than the employer itself. Outsourcing of human resources department can also help the employees. Because they specialize in human resources, these outsourcing companies often know how to get employees the best human resource services around, including health benefits and great retirement plans (Heywood, 2001; Maidment, 2003). They may also be able to provide rewards programs to your company for much less than you might otherwise pay. Also, if you or your employees have need of any kind of human resource support in issues like worker's compensation, these companies have years of expertise that is available to you. Another benefit about human resource outsourcing is that it is not an all or nothing situation. You can easily outsource only your payroll and attendance, for example, while dealing with compliance and taxing yourself.

# 2.3 Employee Perceptions and Human Resource Outsourcing

Perception is the way; we react to any particular situation. An understanding and appreciation of this is no pre-requisite to effective employee perception in the workplace and therefore effective management and leadership. There is a known fact that without perception, nothing can be done in an organization and for doing any task we need a perception which is accepted by all the employees in an organization. It is the key for the manager to make her team work and get the better output for the organization. Perception helps each and every individual in the organization to carry the things in different ways as the organization needs different perceptions to make successful results.

Kessler et al (1999) examined the impact of external activities (outsourcing) on employment relations from the point of view of the employee. In this case, the facets of the business that had been outsourced were mostly in the service, finance, and personnel areas. This research relied on the results from a two phase survey. The first survey was conducted a few weeks after the outsourcing process was initiated, and 103 responses were obtained. The second survey was conducted 18 months later, resulting in only 48 responses. The results from this survey revealed that employees reported greater satisfaction with their job if these factors were present: career development opportunities; reward and training assessments; and organizational respect. Conversely, the survey found that a negative attitude from employees stemmed from new career development stress, because employees were unable to adapt to the new environment and technology. In addition to this, a few employees indicated that they were wary of the new monitoring system that allowed new employers to monitor them much more closely and tightly.

Logan et al (2004) examined the impact of the outsourcing process on employee attitudes and behaviour. The respondents involved with this research were truck drivers and supervisors who were working for an outsourcing provider. This research relied on both pre-event (i.e. pre-outsourcing) and post-event data collection. The pre-event data was collected through interviews. The post-event data collection method was a survey questionnaire, resulting in 500 responses. The result from this survey revealed that to achieve a successful outsourcing process, organizations should consider three main issues which can affect employee attitudes. Firstly, the organization should create a positive first impression by focusing on the quality and reputation of the provider. Secondly, the organization should pay attention to employee involvement and satisfaction about the decision. Results from the study showed that failure to meet employee demands impacted on employee self-esteem, and increased the risk of employee turnover.

Finally, communication between the organization's decision-makers and the employees is vital. In particular, the study revealed that the outsourcing issues, including the reason for outsourcing and the benefits to employees are key areas of communication. Other research has also examined the impact of outsourcing on employee behaviour, including employee psychological

involvement (Pearce, 1993). A mix of questionnaire and interview data was collected from participants at three divisions of a large aerospace company. The survey resulted in 223 responses, which were then combined with 25 interview responses. The results from this survey indicated that when outsourcing occurs, internal employees may feel less trust in the organization. This leads to reduced levels of employee performance and cooperation. Outsourcing providers may also find it difficult to adapt to the new social and organizational culture. This mismatch can end with conflict between internal employees and the external providers. Hence, the relationship between internal employees and external providers seems critical in ensuring the successful implementation of outsourcing decisions. Specifically, the research identified that communication regarding the outsourcing process; the choice of outsourcing partner or process and the relationship between this provider and internal employees; and the benefits that employees see as an outcome of the decision making process all play an important role in determining the success of the outsourcing decision.

#### **CHAPTER THREE**

#### RESEARCH METHODOLOGY.

#### 3.1 Introduction

This chapter presents the methodology that was used to carry out the research .it presents the research design, the target population, sampling procedures, data collection procedures, instruments and data analysis.

#### 3.2 Research Design

The research design used was descriptive survey of employees at Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. This design was considered for this study because of comparative analysis that was done to achieve the research objective.

#### 3.3 Target Population

The population of this study was the employees including the managerial staff in the various departments /sections within Moi Teaching and referral Hospital. The total number was 795.

## 3.4 Sample Size and Selection Procedures

The sample size was 80 respondents drawn from the various divisions within the Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. Respondents were employees from the various departments representing 10% of the target population. Random sampling technique was used to select the sample size of each cadre.

**Table 3.1: Sample Frame** 

	Population	Sample Size
Administrators	122	12
Heads of Departments	23	2
Sectional Heads	35	4
Supervisors	155	16
Others	560	46
Total	795	80

Source: Research Data (2013)

#### 3.5 Data Collection

Primary data was used in this study; a structured questionnaire was used to collect data. The questionnaire contained both closed-ended questions and a few open ended questions. The questionnaire consisted of two sections section one was designed to obtain general information on person section two consisted of questions on the employee perception on the benefits of outsourcing. The questionnaire was administered through "drop and pick" method respondents were employees in various departments /division at Moi Teaching and referral Hospital.

#### 3.6 Data Analysis

Before analysis, the data was checked for completeness and consistency .descriptive statistics were used to analyze the questionnaire .data was summarized and presented in form of tables. The mean, standard Deviation, frequencies and percentages were used.

#### **CHAPTER FOUR**

#### DATA ANALYSIS, RESULTS AND DISCUSSION

#### 4.1 Introduction

This chapter analyses the data collected from the data collection tools, that is the questionnaire presented. It interprets the data in relation to the research objectives and questions. The findings or results are analyzed using different data analysis methods. The purpose of the analysis was to establish the employees' perceptions of the benefits of outsourcing Human Resource services. The raw data was coded, evaluated and tabulated to depict clearly the results of the problem encountered.

#### **4.2 Demographic Characteristics**

The respondents were asked to show their demographic characteristics as was presented in the questionnaire. The characteristics included, departments worked, designation, age of the respondent and gender. These were analyzed as follows.

# **4.2.1** Gender of the Respondents

The respondents were asked to indicate their gender; this was expected to guide the researcher on the conclusions regarding the congruence of responses to the gender characteristics.

**Table 4.1: Gender of Respondents** 

	Frequency	Percent	Cumulative Percent
Male	43	53.8	53.8
Female	37	46.3	100.0
Total	80	100.0	

Source: Author 2013.

The results in table 4.1 show that the respondents were male at 53.8% whereas the female employees were at 46.3%. This is not a significant difference; both genders are well represented at the institution

## 4.2.2 Age of Respondents

According to the study, the following was the age distribution of the respondents. Age influences peoples or individual. Since age influences employees' perception on human resource outsourcing the findings indicate that apart from the respondents' rich experiences they could also appreciate the importance of the study.

Table 4.2:Age bracket

No of years	No	Percent
30 years and below	20	25.0
31-40	38	47.5
41-50	12	15.0
51-60	10	12.5
Total	80	100.0

Source: Author, 2013

Table 4.2 show that the age of most of the respondents was middle age levels between 31-40 years at 47.5%, followed by 30 years and below at 25%, between 41-50 years at 15%, and between 51-60 years at 12.5.%. from the table it is clear that age influences perception, most of the respondents were between 31-40 years, this is the active employment age and are always willing to express their view. I therefore concluded that most of the respondents fell between 31-40 years and this was expected since it is the active age in human cycle of life.

#### **4.2.3 Job level**

The study was supposed to cover employees in sample size.

Table 4.3; Employees by the Job Levels

Job levels	No	Percentage
Administrator	6	7.5
Head department	8	10.0
Sectional head	14	17.5
Supervisor	24	30.0
Others	28	35.0
Total	80	100.0

Source: Author, 2013

Table 4.3 show the distribution of employees in various job levels. From the findings all cadre of employees were represented; therefore the results can be generalized to the entire organization.

# 4.3 The Employees Perceptions on the Benefits of Outsourcing.

The general objective of this study was to establish employee perceptions on the benefits of outsourcing. In this section, respondents were asked to indicate their perceptions to the benefits of outsourcing. The benefits analyzed include cost effectiveness, core competencies, strategic human resource, service delivery and efficiency. The employees were asked to rate their perception using a likert scale of 1-5 where 5 means Strongly Agree, 4 implies Agree , 3 implies Neither Agree nor Disagree , Disagree at 2 and 1 implies Strongly Disagree .For interpretation purposes a mean of <implies strongly disagree, while a mean of 1.5-2.4 implies Disagree. A mean of 2.5-3-5 implies neither agree nor Disagree, a mean of 3.5 -4.5 means Agree and finally a mean of > 4.5 means Strongly Agree.

The standard deviation on the other hand describes the distribution of responses in relation to mean. The standard deviation provides an indication of how far the individual responses to each factor vary from mean. A standard deviation of 1 indicates that the responses are further spread out; a standard deviation of more than 1 indicates that there is no consensus on the responses obtained.

## 4.3.1 Cost Effectiveness as a Benefit of Outsourcing.

The respondents were asked to rate the extent to which they perceived cost effectiveness as a benefit of outsourcing.

Table 4.4: Employees' Perception on Cost Effectiveness as benefit of outsourcing.

	Mean	Std. Deviation
Outsourcing is a cost saving strategy	3.45	1.24
Outsourcing HR activities maintains a better quality service at a cheaper price	3.32	1.27
Outsourcing reduces overall administrative cost	3.94	.95
Outsourcing enables firms to access expert service at lower cost	3.63	1.26

Source: Author, 2013

The results were presented in table 4.4. As shown in the table above the respondents agreed that outsourcing reduces administrative cost with a mean score of 3.9. They also agreed that outsourcing of HR services enables Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital to access expert service at lower cost with a mean score of 3.6. In addition the employees agreed that outsourcing of human resource services is a cost saving strategy. However the respondents are not sure about the effect of outsourcing of Human Resource services to maintain a better quality service at a cheaper price with a moderate score of 3.3. The standard deviation on the other hand is greater than hence there was no consensus on that outsourcing of human resource function is cost effective.

In conclusion the employees of Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital agree that outsourcing of human resource services is cost effective in terms of reducing overall administrative costs, accessing expert services at lower cost and finally that it is a cost saving strategy. However outsourcing of the human resource activities is not agreeable to the employees of Moi Teaching and referral hospital as an activity that maintains a better service at a cheaper price.

# 4.3.2 Focus on Core Competencies as Benefit of Outsourcing

The respondents (employees) were required to rate various statements on scales ranging from 1 to 5 that described, Employee perception on the Focus on Core competencies as benefit for outsourcing Human Resource functions.

Table 4.5; Focus on Core Competencies as Benefit of Outsourcing

	Mean	Std. Deviation
Outsourcing allows organizations to focus on core competencies	3.53	1.23
Outsourcing enables organizations to invest on core competencies	3.69	.98
Outsourcing of HR activities reduces the workload of existing HR staff hence allowing the organization to focus on strategic decision making	3.78	1.02
Outsourcing of HR services enables an organization to develop core competencies	3.58	1.04
HR activities are becoming more complex hence it is prudent for the organization	3.79	1.12
Productivity is increased	3.98	.93

Source: Author, 2013

The results are presented in table 4.5 above. As shown in the table above the respondents agreed that productivity is increased with a mean score of 3.9. The respondents also agreed that outsourcing of human resource services reduces the workload of existing Human Resource Staff hence enabling the organization to focus on strategic decision making with a mean score of 3.78. Further they agreed that Human Resource functions are becoming complex hence it is prudent for the organization with a mean score of 3.72. In addition they agreed with the statement that outsourcing enables organization to invest on core competencies with a mean score of 3.69 and that that it enables an organization to develop core competencies with a mean of 3.59, disagree that it allows organizations to focus on core competencies with a mean score of 3.53. The standard deviation is largely greater than hence there was no consensus on focus on Core Competencies as a benefit of outsourcing human resource functions.

In conclusion the employees of MTRH agreed that outsourcing of Human resource services is beneficial to the organization in that productivity is increased, that outsourcing reduces the workload of existing Human Resource Staff hence enabling the organization to focus on strategic decision making and that Human Resource functions are becoming complex hence it is prudent for the organization. Further the employees are agreeable with the statement that outsourcing enables organization to invest on core competencies, that it also enables an organization to develop core competencies and finally that it allows organizations to focus on core competencies.

## 4.3.3 Strategic Human Resource as Benefit of Outsourcing

The respondents (employees) were required to rate various statements on scales ranging from 1 to 5 that described, Employee perception on the Strategic Human Resource as benefit for outsourcing Human Resource functions.

Table 4.6: Strategic Human Resource as Benefit of Outsourcing

	Mean	Std. Deviation
It aligns HR activities with organizational goals and strategy	3.80	1.05
Outsourcing HR activities encourages the HR function to be more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost	3.81	.85
objectives and addressing developmental goals in terms of specific HR knowledge		
Outsourcing leads to strategic planning	3.82	.98

Source: Author, 2013

The results are presented in table 4.6 above. as indicated in the table the respondents agree that outsourcing of human resource services leads to strategic planning with a mean score of 3.83, they also agree that outsourcing encourages the human resource function to be more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and addressing developmental goal with a mean score of 3.82 and finally the respondents agree that outsourcing of human resource services aligns human resource activities with organizational goals and strategy with a mean score of 3.81. On the standard deviation results, majorities are less than one hence there was consensus generally that Strategic Human Resource is a benefit of outsourcing human resource functions.

In conclusion the employees of MTRH agree that outsourcing of human resource services leads to strategic planning, that outsourcing encourages the human resource function to be more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and addressing developmental goal. Finally they agree that human resource functions aligns human resource activities with organizational goals and strategy .it's imperative therefore that employees of MTRH feel that strategic Human Resource is a benefit of outsourcing.

# 4.3.4. Service Delivery as Benefit of Outsourcing

The respondents (employees) were required to rate various statements on scales ranging from 1 to 5 that described Employee perception on Service Delivery as benefit for outsourcing Human Resource functions.

Table 4.7: Service Delivery as Benefit of Outsourcing

	Mean	Std. Deviation
Outsourcing encourages the measurement of value of	3.50	1.07
human resource		
Outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be readily	4.10	4.78
turned on and of		
Outsourcing offers improved method of capacity	3.84	.96
management of services		
Outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision	3.70	1.01
Outcomain a imageness quality consider and reliability in	2.02	97
Outsourcing improves quality service and reliability in	3.92	.87
delivery		

Source: Author, 2013

The results were presented in table 4.7 above. As shown in the tables above the respondents do agree that outsourcing of human resource services enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off with a mean score of 4.11, they also agree that Outsourcing of the human resource services improves quality service and reliability in delivery with a mean score of 3.92. In addition the respondents agreed that Outsourcing of human resource services at MTRH offers improved method of capacity management of services with a mean score of 3.84 and also that outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision with a mean score of 3.70. The respondents further were agreeable to the effect that Outsourcing encourages the measurement of value of human resource with a mean score of 3.51. The results on standard deviation majority of which were greater than 1 indicate that there was no consensus on service delivery as a benefit of

## Outsourcing Human Resource Functions.

In conclusion the employees of MTRH agree that outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off, Outsourcing improves quality service and reliability in delivery, that Outsourcing offers improved method of capacity management of services . They also agreed that outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision and that Outsourcing encourages the measurement of value of human resource.

# 4.3.5. Efficiency as Benefit of Outsourcing

The respondents (employees) were required to rate various statements on scales ranging from 1 to 5 that described employee perception of Efficiency as benefit for outsourcing Human Resource functions.

Table 4.8: Efficiency as Benefit of Outsourcing Efficiency

	Mean	Std. Deviation
		0.5
Outsourcing leads to efficient handling of employment matters	3.57	.97
Outsourcing helps in efficient handling of compensation and benefits	3.27	1.01
Outsourcing benefits administration in provision of extensive knowledge of	3.74	.89
laws and regulation pertaining to employment and taxation		
Outsourcing improves overall efficiency	3.70	1.04
Outsourcing ensures sufficient flexibility	3.94	.93

Source: Author, 2013

The results in table 4.8 above show that the respondents agree that outsourcing ensures sufficient flexibility with mean score of 3.94. They also agree that outsourcing benefits administration in provision of extensive knowledge of laws and regulation pertaining to employment and taxation with a mean score of 3.74, further the respondents do agree that Outsourcing of human resource services improves overall efficiency with a mean score of 3.71.

In addition they agree that outsourcing leads to efficient handling of employment matters with a mean score of 3.57. However the respondents were not sure as to whether outsourcing of human resource services helps in efficient handling of compensation and benefits with mean score of 3.28. From the results on standard deviation, majority are greater than 1 hence there was consensus that efficiency is a benefit of outsourcing Human Resource Function.

In conclusion the employees of MTRH agree that outsourcing of human resource services ensures sufficient flexibility. They also agree that it benefits administration in provision of extensive knowledge of laws and regulation pertaining to employment and taxation and that Outsourcing of human resource services improves overall efficiency. In addition they agree that outsourcing leads to efficient handling of employment matters. However the employees of MTRH do not agree that outsourcing helps in efficient handling of compensation and benefits.

#### 4.4 Discussions

This study confirms what other researchers have established that employees perceive outsourcing of Human Resource Functions as a benefit to organizations. The employees of Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital agree that outsourcing of human resource services is cost effective in terms of reducing overall administrative costs, accessing expert services at lower cost and finally that it is a cost saving strategy. Outsourcing is seen as a cost saving strategy (Stroh & Treehuboff 2003), with organizations outsourcing their non-core competencies whilst still maintaining customer service, and thereby gaining a competitive advantage (Thompson et al 2005). Jeffay et al (1997) suggested that outsourcing human resource activities can maintain a better-quality human resource service at a cheaper price. The cost of outsourcing human resources activities can amount to less than the cost to recruit, interview, hire and train human resources staff members to perform the same functions.

In addition employees of MTRH agreed that outsourcing of Human resource services is beneficial to the organization in that productivity is increased, that outsourcing reduces the workload of existing Human Resource Staff hence enabling the organization to focus on strategic decision making and that Human Resource functions are becoming complex hence it is prudent

for the organization and that outsourcing enables organization to invest on core competencies, that it also enables an organization to develop core competencies and finally that it allows organizations to focus on core competencies. These has also been established by other researchers, for instance, (Cooper, 2007; Potkány, 2008) stated that Many organizations make a decision to outsource some organizational activities because they want to focus on their core competencies, and see low value in developing in-house activities outside of this core. Hansen, (2009) found that outsourcing human resource activities can reduce the work load of existing human resource staff, thereby allowing the organization to primarily focus on strategic decision making and developing core competencies. Cook (1999) supports the view that outsourcing human resource activities can allow managers to pay attention to their core business rather than spend valuable time on human resource activities that are becoming increasingly more complex and advanced.

This study further established that Outsourcing of human resource services leads to strategic planning, that outsourcing encourages the human resource function to be more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and addressing developmental goal and that that human resource functions aligns human resource activities with organizational goals and strategy. (Gubbins et al 2006; Wirtz et al 2008) found that Organizations increasingly acknowledge the strategic importance of the human resource function. As human resource management perspectives change from operational and administrative, to strategic, human resource becomes more aligned with organizational goals and strategy. In (Beardwell & Claydon, 2007) it was suggested that by specifically isolating the human resource management function, organizations can gain an edge over competitors For instance, in a study by Gilley et al (2004) outsourcing the human resource function had an impact on organizational performance.

This study also established that outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off; Outsourcing improves quality service and reliability in delivery, that Outsourcing offers improved method of capacity management of services that outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision. This was also confirmed by other authors; (Quinn

1992) wrote that Outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off. (Jarilo 1998) in his work stated that Human Resource services outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision. Finally this study established that outsourcing of human resource services ensures sufficient flexibility that it benefits administration in provision of extensive knowledge of laws and regulation pertaining to employment and taxation and that Outsourcing of human resource services improves overall efficiency. In addition that outsourcing leads to efficient handling of employment matters. In (Heywood, 2001). He stated that Outsourcing of human resources department can also help the employees because they specialize in human resources, since these outsourcing companies often know how to get employees with the best human resource services around, including health benefits and great retirement plans. (Maidment, 2003) They may also be able to provide rewards programs to your company for much less than you might otherwise pay and also that if you or your employees have need of any kind of human resource support in issues like worker's compensation, these companies have years of expertise that is available to you. The finding in this study confirms what is in the literature review.

#### **CHAPTER FIVE**

#### SUMMARY OF FINDINGS, CONCLUSIONS AND RECOMMENDATIONS.

#### 5.1 Introduction

This chapter contains a summary of the research, gives conclusions on the findings of the research and makes recommendation on areas where the management should get involved in to design programmes that would incorporate and facilitate easy outsourcing hence enabling the existing employees to appreciate the need and the importance of outsourcing.

# **5.2 Summary of the Findings**

This research project was a descriptive survey on the Employees perceptions on the benefits of outsourcing Human Resource at the Moi teaching and referral hospital. From the results both genders were represented well in the institution with male respondents. It was also noted from the results that the age of most of the respondents was between 31 and 40 years and this was expected since it is the active age in human cycle of life. Therefore apart from their rich experiences they could also appreciate the importance of the study. All cadre and departments were well represented, thus the data can be relied upon for generalization to the whole population. Respondents rated the extent, to which they perceived the benefits of outsourcing of human resource services from the findings, The respondent's responses indicate that they view outsourcing of human resource services as being cost effective in terms of reducing overall administrative costs, accessing expert services at lower cost and that it is a cost saving strategy

The respondents further agreed that outsourcing of human resource services leads to strategic planning, that outsourcing encourages the human resource function to be more strategic by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and addressing developmental goal .the respondents also stated that human resource functions aligns human resource activities with organizational goals and strategy. In addition the respondents were of the opinion that outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be readily turned on and off, Outsourcing improves quality service and reliability in delivery, that Outsourcing offers improved method of

capacity management of services .They also agreed that outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service provision and that Outsourcing encourages the measurement of value of human resource .The employees of MTRH agree that outsourcing of human resource services ensures sufficient flexibility. They also agree that it benefits administration in provision of extensive knowledge of laws and regulation pertaining to employment and taxation and that Outsourcing of human resource services improves overall efficiency. In addition they agree that outsourcing leads to efficient handling of employment matters. However the respondents are not sure whether outsourcing of the human resource activities at Moi Teaching and referral hospital as an activity maintains a better service at a cheaper price and that outsourcing helps in efficient handling of compensation and benefits.

## **5.3 Conclusion**

The respondents being employees of MTRH and majority of them having been in the Organization for a considerably longer period confirms that they were knowledgeable with the organizations operations and such gave responses relevant to the study. The results show that the study was able to collect responses from all the cadre of employees. Age of the most of the respondents was in middle range and since age influences people's abilities to make decisions it can be concluded that most employees had rich experience that enabled them appreciate the study.

It can also be concluded that outsourcing of human resource services is welcomed by the employees. The employees have positive attitude towards outsourcing of human resource services. The positive results demonstrate that the employees of MTRH are open minded and they are well informed and conversant with the emerging strategic practices that are being adopted by various organizations to yield better results at minimal costs. This can be attributed to the best practices at MTRH where employees are engaged in decision making processes. It can also be concluded that as much as employees' appreciate the benefits of outsourcing to MTRH. They equally have personal fears. For instance, the employees' security of tenure and also the efficiency in handling of their compensation and benefits. Further negative attitude from employees stem from new career development stress, because employees are unable to adapt to

the new environment and technology. In addition, employees are wary of the new monitoring systems that allow employers to monitor them much more closely and tightly.

## 5.4 Recommendations

This study will benefit MTRH because the management will be able to appreciate the employees' perceptions on the benefits of outsourcing of human resource functions. Employees form part and parcel of an organization and they are crucial in the decision making process. Failure to indulge the employees drastically affects their perception hence the employees may refuse to cooperate with those who have been outsourced hence affecting performance leading to low output, poor results and poor rendering of services hence dissatisfaction to the consumers. In the study, its noted that Employees do appreciate the need to outsource human resource functions but with reservation. We can see in the results that the respondents did just 'agree' to almost all the statement. The reservations are linked to the security of tenure of employment. This is an issue that need be addressed before encompassing outsourcing of the human resource function. Thus the management of MTRH need to formulate policies that clearly protects the interests of its employees and also outline specific areas to be outsource and the extend of services to be rendered by the outsourced firms.

To achieve a successful outsourcing process, the MTRH should create a positive impression by focusing on the quality and reputation of the provider. The organization should pay attention to employee involvement and satisfaction about the decision. Failure to meet employee demands impacts on employee self-esteem and increases the risk of employee turnover. Communication between the organization's decision makers and the employees is vital .outsourcing issues, including the reason for outsourcing and benefits to employees are key areas of communication. When outsourcing occurs internal employees may feel less trust in the organization. This leads to reduced levels of employee performance and cooperation. Outsourcing providers may also find it difficult to adapt to the new social and organizational culture. This mismatch can end with conflict between internal employees and external providers. Hence, the relationship between internal employees and external providers seems critical in ensuring the successful implementatation of outsourcing decisions. Thus there is need for communication regarding the

outsourcing process, the choice of outsourcing partner or process and the relationship the provider and internal employees; and the benefits that employees see as an outcome of the decision making process, play an important role in determining the success of the outsourcing decision.

## 5.5. Recommendations for Further Research

The success of an organization depends on its people in this case being the employees and therefore understanding their perceptions may greatly help in getting to appreciate the importance of the people to an organization. The data for this study was collected from a mixed group of employees including the heads of various departments. Thus the findings herein may not generalize to other institutions; research in other institutions might yield different results. In this regard replicating this study in different settings would be worthwhile hence further research should be done in other sectors of the Kenyan economy, both public and private sectors. It is also important to study the best ways employees can be made to wholly appreciate and accommodate outsourcing since its apparent that outsourcing generally benefits organizations and therefore it's here to stay.

# **5.6 Limitation of the Study**

Some of the respondents were not conversant with the subject matter of the research or they did not understand the questions and hence during introduction they shied away from filling the questionnaire.

# **REFERENCES**

- Armstrong, J.S. (2001). *Principles of forecasting: A handbook for researchers and practitioners*. The United States of America: Kluwer Academic Publishers.
- Armstrong, M. (2006). A hand book of human resource management practices (10th Ed.). London: Kogan Page Limited.
- Arnold, U. (2000). New dimension of outsourcing: a combination of transaction cost economics and the core competencies concept. European Journal of Purchasing & Supply Management, 6, 23-29.
- Beardwell, J. & Claydon, T. (2007). *Human resource management: A contemporary approach (5th Ed.)*. New York: Prentice Hall/Financial Times.
- Blackman, L., Humpries, H., Davis, R. & Brereton, P. (2006, February). *Is salary sacrifice a retention aid?*. Human resources, 48.
- Cook, M.F. (1999). Outsourcing human resource function: Strategies for providing enhanced HUMAN RESOURCE services at lower cost. New York: AMACOM.
- Cooper, A. (2007, May). To outsource or not to outsource. Supply Management, 12(10), 22-26.
- Datar, R. (2003, July). BPO adoption in Asia/Pacific: A Demand-side perspective. Gartner Research.
- Dessler, G. (2008). Human resource management (11th ed.). Singapore: Pearson Prentice Hall.
- Dibble, S. (1999). Keeping your valuable employees: Retention strategies for your organization's most important resource. New York: Wiley.
- Dobbs, L. & Wadhwani, S. (2004). Is outsourcing killing jobs? Optimize 19-21.
- Elmuti D. (2003). The Perceived impact of outsourcing on organizational performance. American

- Journal of Business, 18(2), 33 41.
- Fiorito J. Bozeman D.P. Young A. & Meurs J.A. (2007). *Organizational Commitment, Human resource Practices, and Organizational Characteristics*. Journal of Management Issues, 19(2) 186 199.
- Gilley K.M., Greer C.R. & Rasheed, A.A. (2004). *Human resource outsourcing and organizational performance in manufacturing firms*. Journal of Business Research, 57, 232-240.
- Greer, C.R., Youngblood, S.A. & Gray, D.A. (1999). *Human resource management outsourcing:* The make or buy decision. The Academy of Management Executive, 13(3), 85-97.
- Gubbins, C., Garavan, T.N., Hogan, C. & Woodlock, M. (2006). *Enhancing the role of the HUMAN RESOURCED* function: The case of a Health Services Organization. Irish Journal of Management, 27(1), 171 206.
- Hansen, F. (2009). *Currents in Compensation and Benefits*. Compensation & Benefits Review, 41(1), 5 24.
- Hasan, A. & Abdullah, M.S. (2008). Human *capital, exports, and economic growth: A causality analysis* for Pakistan, 1975 2005. The Business Review, 11(1), 247 252.
- Heywood, J.B. (2001). *The outsourcing dilemma: The search for competitiveness*. Great Britain: Pearson Education Limited.
- Hiltrop, J.M., Jenster, P.V. & Martens, H. (2001). *Managing the outsourced workforce: strategic challenges for human resource management*. Strategic Change, 10(7), 367 382.
- Institute of personnel and development (1998) Institute of Personnel and Development: a Guide to Outsourcing. IPD: London
- Ivancevich, J.M. (2007). Human resource management (11th Ed.). New York: McGraw-Hill.

- Jarilo J.C. (1998) Strategic Networks Creating: The Borderless Organization. G.B.
- Jeffay, J., Bohannon, S. & Laspisa, E.K. (1997). Beyond benefits: The changing face of HUMAN RESOURCE outsourcing. Benefits Quarterly, 13(1), 41-48.
- Kamath, J.P. (2007, Jun 5). *Capitalize on 'Chindia' collaboration to remain competitive*, says Gartner. Computer Weekly, 8.
- Kessler, I., Shapiro, J.C. & Purcell, J. (1999). *Outsourcing and the employee perspective*. Human resource Management Journal, 9(2), 5-20.
- Klepper, R. & Jones, W.O. (1998). *Outsourcing information technology, system and service*. New Jersey: Prentice Hall.
- Komen H. Chebet (2005); A Survey of the Extent of Outsourcing of HRM Functions by the Public Service in Kenya. Unpublished MBA Thesis, UON.
- Kosnik, T., Ji, D.J.W. & Hoover, K. (2006). *Outsourcing vs. in sourcing in the human resource supply chain:* A comparison of five generic models. Personnel Review, 35(6), 671.
- KPMG International (2006). *Asian outsourcing: The next wave. Australia:* The Economist Intelligence Unit Ltd.
- Lawler, E.E. & Mohrman, S.A. (2003). Creating a strategic human resource organization: An assessment of trends and new directions. California: Stanford University Press.
- Leeuwen, B.V. & Foldvari, P. (2008). *Human capital and economic growth in Asia 1890 2000:* A Time-series analysis. Asian Economic Journal, 22(3).
- Logan, M.S., Faught, K. & Ganster, D.C. (2004). *Outsourcing a satisfied and committed workforce:*A trucking industry case study. The International Journal of Human resource Management, 15(1), 147 162.
- Lohr, S. (2007, July 5). At IBM: A smarter way to outsource. New York Times, 1.
- Mabey C. et al (2005) *Human resource Management: A Strategic introduction* .Oxford: Black Well Publishers.

- Maidment, F.H. (2003). *Human resource* (13th Ed.). The United States of America: McGraw-Hill/Dushkin.
- Makenna, D. & Walker, D.H.T. (2008). A study of out-sourcing versus in-sourcing tasks within a project value chain. International Journal of Managing Projects in Business, 1(2), 216 232.
- Makhino Irene (2006); A Survey of Benefits & Challenges of Outsourcing HR Activities. Commercial Banks in Kenya. Unpublished MBA Thesis, UON.
- Merritt, L. (2007). *Human capital management: More than HR with a new name.* Human resource Planning, 30(2), 14 16.
- The Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital. *The company background, overview and profile*. Retrieved from http://www.mtrh.or.ke.
- Mouhammed, A. (2008). *Mitchell's general theory of the business cycle and the recent crisis in the U.S economy*. The Journal of Applied Business and Economics, 8(2), 30 49.
- Nyarandi J.O. (2002); A Survey of Implementation of Outsourcing in Private Hospitals Unpublished MBA Thesis, UON.
- Pearce, J.L. (1993). Toward an organizational behaviour of contract laborers: Their psychological involvement and effects on employee co-workers. Academy of Management Journal, 36(5), 1082 1097.
- Potkány, M. (2008). Personnel outsourcing processes. E+M Ekonomie a Management, 4, 53 62.
- Pritchard, W. (1984). What's new in organization development? Personnel Management, 16(7), 30-33.
- Quinn, J.B. (1999). Strategic outsourcing: *Leveraging knowledge capabilities*. Sloan Management Review, 40(4), 9-21.
- Raman, S.R., Budhwar, P. & Balasubramanina, G. (2007). *People management issues in Indian KPOs*. Employee Relations, 29(6), 696 710.

- Reilly, P. & Williams, T. (2006). *Strategic HUMAN RESOURCE: Building the Capability to Deliver.*Great Britain: Gower Publishing Limited.
- Robinson, M. & Kalakota, R. (2004). Offshore outsourcing: Business model, ROI and best practices (2nd Ed.). The United State of America: Mivar Press Inc.
- Simmonds, D. & Gibson, R. (2008). A model for outsourcing HUMAN RESOURCED.

  Journal of
  - European Industrial Training, 32(1), 4 18.
- Stone, R.J. (2006). Managing human resource. Australia: John Wiley & Sons Australia Ltd.
- Stopper, W.G. (2005). Outsourcing's effect on HR leadership development. Human resource Planning, 28(4), 11-13.
- Stroh, L.K. & Treehuboff, D. (2003). *Outsourcing HUMAN RESOURCE functions: When-and when not-to go outside*. Journal of Leadership & Organizational Studies, 10(1)
- Sullivan, J. (2004). *The case against outsourcing HUMAN RESOURCE*. Canadian HUMAN RESOURCE Reporter, 17(3), 15-16.
- Tanure, B. & Duarte, R.G. (2007). *Managing people in radical changes (M&As); The adoption of intrinsically consistent HRM strategies in Brazilian companies*. International Journal of Manpower, 28(5), 369 383.
- Tarlochan Kaur (2001); A Survey of the Outsourcing of Human resource Management Services among Manufacturing Firms in Nairobi. Unpublished MBA Thesis, UON.
- Taylor, M. (2007). HR outsourcing takes shape. China Staff, 13(10), 18-22.
- Thompson, A.A., Strickland, A.J. & Gamble, J.E. (2005). *Crafting and executing strategy: The quest for competitive advantages*. Concepts and cases (14th Ed.). New York:

  McGraw-Hill/Irwin.

Torrington D. et al (2005). Human resource Management .Essex: Pearson education ltd

Wirtz, J., Heracleous, L. & Pangarkar, N. (2008). *Managing human resources for service excellence and cost effective at Singapore Airlines*. Managing Service Quality, 18(1).

Young, S. (2007). Outsourcing: *Uncovering the complexity of the decision*. International Public Management Journal, 10(3), 307 – 326.

**Appendix 1. Letter of Introduction** 

Dear sir/madam,

RE: REQUEST FOR RESEARCH PROPOSAL DATA

I am a student undertaking a degree in master of business administration (MBA) at the

University of Nairobi. I'm carrying out a research project proposal in partial fulfillment of the

degree requirements.

Research proposal topic; Employee Perception of the Benefits of Outsourcing Human resource at

the Moi Teaching and Referral Hospital.

I kindly request you to fill the attached questionnaire. The information you will provide will be

treated with utmost confidentiality and will be used purely for academic purposes.

I will pick the questionnaire from your office after you have completed filling it.

Thank you for cooperation.

Yours faithfully,

Renee Kitagwa.

43

# Appendix 2. Questionnaire

The information provided here will be used solely for academic purposes and will be treated with maximum confidentiality.

# **INSTRUCTIONS:**

- 1. Please answer all questions in order
- 2. The accuracy of your description depends on your being straight forward in answering this questionnaire.
- 3. You will not be identified by your answer.

# **PART 1: DEMOGRAPHIC INFORMATION**

1. Name of the respondent (optional
2. Gender
3. Age group
30 years and below [ ]
31-40 years [ ]
41-50 years [ ]
51-60 years [ ]
61 years and above [ ]
4. Job Level
Administrator [ ]
Head of Department [ ]
Sectional Head

Supervi	sor [ ]	
Others.		
Section operati		the benefits of outsourcing human resource Services/
	dicate the extent to which you s of outsourcing of human resour	agree with each of the following statements about the ree services.
Key:	Strongly Agree	[5]
	Agree	[4]
	Neither Agree nor Disagree	[3]
	Disagree	[2]
	Strongly Disagree	[1]

	1	2	3	4	5
1.Cost Effectiveness					
a. Outsourcing is a cost saving Strategy					
b. Outsourcing human resource activities maintains a					
better quality Service at a cheaper price					
c. Outsourcing reduces overall administrative costs.					
d. Outsourcing enables firms to access expert service at					
lower cost					
2. Focus on Core Competencies					
a. Outsourcing allows organizations to focus on core					
competencies.					
b. Outsourcing enables organizations to invest on core					
competencies					
c. Outsourcing of human resource activities reduces the					
workload of existing human resource Staff hence allowing					
the organization to focus on strategic decision making					
d. Outsourcing of human resource services enables an					
organization to develop core competencies.					
e. Human resource activities are becoming more					
complex hence it is prudent for the organization to					
outsource.					
f. Productivity is increased.					

3. Strategic Human resource		
20 Standard 2000 m2 00		
a. It aligns human resource activities with		
organizational goals and strategy.		
b. Outsourcing human resource activities with		
encourages the human resource function to be more strategic		
by spending less time on meeting cost objectives and		
addressing developmental goals in terms of specific human		
resource knowledge		
c. Outsourcing leads to strategic planning		
e. Outsourcing reads to strategic planning		
4. Service Delivery		
a. Outsourcing encourages the measurement of value		
of Human resource		
b. Outsourcing enables flexibility in that supply can be		
readily turned on and off.		
c. Outsourcing offers improved method of capacity		
management of services.		
d. Outsourcing guarantees efficiency in service		
provision guarantees enterency in service		
Provision		
e. Outsourcing improves quality service and reliability		
in delivery.		
in deni-ery.		

5.Efficiency		
a. Outsourcing leads efficient handling of employment		
matters.		
b. Outsourcing helps in efficient handling of		
compensation and benefits		
c. Outsourcing benefits administration in provision of		
extensive knowledge of laws and regulation pertaining to		
employment and taxation		
d. Outsourcing improves overall efficiency.		
e. Outsourcing ensures sufficient flexibility		

Thank you for your cooperation.